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EXECUTIVE OFFICE FOR UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS
Philip H. Modlin, Director

Difficulty in Obtaining Supplies

With increasing frequency, the Executive Office has been re-
ceiving complaints from U.S. Attorneys concerning difficulty in
obtaining from the Administrative Division various items of consumable
supplies. Please refer this item to the person in charge of ordering
your supplies and notify us of any specific instance where this matter
has been of concern to your office.

Upon receipt of your reply we shall take the matter up with
appropriate persons in the Administrative Division with a view to
corrective action,

3*
¥*
3
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POINTS TO REMEMBER

Legislative Analysis of 18 U.S.C. 351 -
Protection of Member of Congress

Added at the end of this issue of the Bulletin is a legislative
analysis of legislation affording protection for Members of Congress
enacted as Title IV of the Omnibus Crime Control Act of 1970, which
became effective January 2, 1971. The status of Congressmen was
not previously the subject of statutory coverage. This legislation is
directed at killing, kidnaping, and attempting or conspiring to do
either, as well as assaults. Considering the climate of terrorist
activity at the present time and the vulnerability of Members of
Congress due to their extensive travel, it would be advisable for
each U.S. Attorney's office to be aware of this statute as a violation
could occur in any district at any time.

(Criminal Division)
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ANTITRUST DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General Richard W. McLaren A

DISTRICT COURT

SHERMAN ACT

COURT OVERRULES MOTION TO DISMISS IN SECTION 1 SHERMAN
ACT CASE.

United States v. Richter Concrete Corporation, et al. (S.D. Ohio,
CR. 11-700; March 16, 1971; D.J. 60-10-75)

On March 16, 1971, Judge Timothy S. Hogan of the Southern Dis-
trict of Ohio, Western Division, overruled a motion to dismiss an indict-
ment against Richter Concrete Corporation, Hilltop Concrete and Eddie K.
Wilson. The motion was based on the alleged failure of the indictment to
allege a violation and a failure to allege adequately the interstate com-
merce requisites.

The indictment, returned against the two corporations and one in-
dividual, charges that the defendants entered into and engaged in a com-
bination and conspiracy in unreasonable restraint of interstate trade and
commerce in the sale of ready mix concrete in the Cincinnati area, in
violation of Section 1 of the Sherman Act.

The indictment further charges that said combination and conspiracy
consisted of a continuing agreement, understanding, and concert of action
among the defendants to raise and stabilize the price of ready mix concrete
in the Cincinnati area.

With respect to trade and commerce the indictment alleges that a
substantial part of the cement purchased by the defendants for use in the
production of their ready mix concrete is produced in states other than the
State of Ohio and is delivered by suppliers thereof to the corporate de-
fendants in response to specific orders placed by these defendants. The
indictment charges that the corporate defendants act as conduits through
which cement flows in a continuous uninterrupted stream in interstate
commerce from the states in which it is produced to ready mix concrete
production facilities maintained by the corporate defendants in the
Cincinnati area where it is incorporated into ready mix concrete and
from there delivered to job sites.

The defendants’ motion was based on two grounds:
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First, the indictment fails to allege the essential facts constituting
a conspiracy in unlawful restraint of trade in that it does not allege ''the
manner in which the alleged violation occurred' and 'the essential factual
allegations' in support thereof.

Judge Hogan denied this portion of defendant's motion, stating that
a Sherman Act indictment, unquestionably sufficient in its statements of
the specific statutory violation involved, and unquestionably sufficient in
respect to time and place, and unquestionably sufficient in alleging a
per se violation, need not go further and contain some allegation of the
manner in which the agreement or conspiracy was to be carried out.
Judge Hogan further stated that the offense would be complete when the
agreement which constitutes a per se violation, i.e., agreement to work
together to tamper with price, is made. Whether the detail was worked
out at the same time or later would remain a detail and not an ""essential
element'.

The defendants' second ground for motion to dismiss was that the
indictment fails to allege essential facts showing a restraint of trade in,
or affecting interstate commerce, as distinguished from intrastate com-
merce or purely local commerce.

With respect to this interstate commerce argument, the court said
there must be a substantial relationship between some interstate commerce
and the per se agreement, i.e., the per se agreement must be, either
directly or by necessary implication, directed toward interstate commerce.
A purely local effect, even coupled with a per se price-fixing agreement,
would not satisfy the jurisdictional requirements of a Sherman Act pro-
ceeding. This requires, said the court, an inquiry into the involved set
of principles in the so-called "in commerce' theory and the so-called
""affects interstate commerce' theory.

The court held that the instant indictment sets forth a course of
conduct which, if proven, would satisfy the requirements of the ""in com-
merce' theory. The conduit allegations in this indictment sufficiently
allege an uninterrupted flow of cement in interstate commerce in substan-
tial amounts from the producer to the eventual consumer. As to the
"affects' theory, the court said that the ""interstate movement' of a ''sub-
stantial part of the cement purchased by the corporate defendants and used
in the production of ready mix'"" adequately describes the combination and
conspiracy to be '"in unreasonable restraint of interstate trade and com-
merce'',

The ''affects'' theory, said the court, has been described as involv-
ing a question of fact whether the intrastate activities affect interstate
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commerce in a substantial, as distinguished from an incidental, manner.
The court said the indictment charges the ultimate fact that a substantial
part of the cement purchased is received in interstate commerce and that
that commerce is affected. The allegations themselves, said the court,
are sufficient. Whether the Government can prove it or not is not the
question.

Staff: C. L. Steinhouse; ¥. B. Moore; D. B. Moore; J. J. Calvert;
D. F. Hils; and F. M. Mosely (Antitrust Division)
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CIVIL DIVISION : ‘

Assistant Attorney General L. Patrick Gray, III

COURT OF APPEALS

FEDERAL TORT CLAIMS ACT

U. S. MAY NOT BE HELD LIABLE FOR INJURIES TO WORKMEN
ON GOVT. JOB SITES MERELY BECAUSE IT RETAINS THE RIGHT,
AND ACTUALLY UNDERTAKES, TO REQUIRE ADHERENCE TO
SAFETY REGULATIONS AND TO INSPECT FOR COMPLIANCE WITH
ITS CONTRACT, HELD.

Fisher v. United States, et al. (C. A. 3, Nos. 18,151, 18,152 and
18,153; decided April 2, 1971; D.J. 157-62-405)

Fisher, a new employee of a subcontractor working on a flood
control dam being constructed on Government land, was injured while
working in a wooden form into which concrete was to be poured. His
injury occurred while he was using the "spreader' boards holding the
forms apart as a walkway--a practice he had seen other employees fol-
low. One of the spreader boards on which he stepped broke, causing him ‘
to fall.

Fisher brought this action under the Federal Tort Claims Act, 28
U.S.C. 1346(b) and 2671 et seq. The district court entered a judgment
for $110, 280 against the United States based on findings that: (1) the
Government was in possession of the land comprising the worksite;

(2) the Government's resident engineer at the site, who was in charge
generally of the construction and whose duties included supervision of
the Government's safety inspectors at the site, was aware that the con-
tractors might hire inexperienced workmen; (3) the Government had
reason to know that there were workmen on the site who made a practice
of stepping on spreader boards; and (4) the Government required con-
tractors to follow a safety plan and had the power to require inclusion

of safety regulations in that plan. The court viewed the Government's
failure to warn Fisher of the dangers of stepping on spreader boards or
to insure that his employer warned him as a breach cf its duty as a land-
owner to an invitee under Restatement Torts (2d), Sec. 318.

The Court of Appeals reversed, stating: .

We do not view the presence of a few Government _
employees at the construction site of a large dam ‘
as being evidence that the United States was in

possession of the site.

av.
b

.,.
*



The law of Pennsylvania makes it clear that éne
who employs an independent contractor may also
employ a person to ascertain that the work is
done accordirig to plans and specifications and
that the employment of such a person in no way
indicates that the independent contractor is being
subjected to control..

Aty ot e
b L bred

This is a corollary to the long recognized gen-
eral right of inspection and supervision that an
owner normally enjoys and exercises to insure
his receiving from the contractor the benefit or
total performance bargained for. In employing
those men, the United States was only seeking

to protect itself and to insure that the contractors
were performing in the manner required of them
under the contract. Gowdy v. United States,

412 F. 24 525, 529 (C.A. 6, 1969), cert. denied,
396 U.S. 960 (1969); Roberson v. United States,
382 F. 2d 714, 721 (C.A. 9, 1967). We conclude
that the district court's finding that the United
States was in possession of the site based on the
presence of the Government's engineer and in-
spectors was clearly erroneous.

b
=R R
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In these situations, the prime independent con-
tractor actually takes over the site. As in the
instant case, he employs various subcontractors,
and all the contractors collectively move in large
amounts of material, equipment, and personnel.
The owner's prime concern is to see to it that the
contract is performed. It was for this purpose
that the United States maintained an engineer and
inspectors at the site.

Staff: Robert V. Zener (formerly of the Civil Division)

and Ronald R. Glancz (Civil Division)
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DISTRICT COURT

FEDERAL PRIORITY STATUTE--
"LLONG ARM" EXECUTION STATUTE

U.S. REACHES ASSETS PAID OUT OF CORPORATION TO AVOID
OBLIGATIONS UNDER RENEGOTIATION ACT OF 1943.

United States v. George H. Wolfe (D. Conn., No. 9191; decided
February 26, 1971; D.J. 77-52-1465)

This action was brought by the Government to recover $186, 000 in
excessive profits paid a corporation which were diverted and appropriated
by defendant and his wife, the principals of the corporation, instead of being
returned to the United States as required by the Renegotiation Act of 1943
(50 U.S. C. App. 1191, et seq.). This money was siphoned out of the corpo-
ration between 1943 and 1945 as part of royalty payments, officers' salaries,
expense accounts, and undeclared liquidation dividends. By the time the
Renegotiation Board issued its unilateral determination in January 1948, all
of the corporate assets had been dissipated with the exception of a claim
against the United States for overpayment of corporate income and excess
profits taxes,

In 1954, while the corporation's appeal from the Renegotiation Board's
determination was pending, the corporation prevailed in its claim for over-
payment of taxes and received a refund of $51, 000. This money was
deposited in the corporate bank account and was immediately used to pay an
antecedent debt due the defendant's wife. She withdrew this money and de-
posited it in a joint investment account in Canada and, when she died, defend-
ant acquired her interest as well.

In this action, the Government sought restitution maintaining that the
excessive profits, which the corporation was required by contract and law
to return to the Government, were a trust in the hands of the defendants who
were unjustly enriched by appropriating this money. Alternatively, the
Government sought to recover the proceeds of the tax refund, contending
that the removal of this money from the corporate bank account was an act
of bankruptcy and the Government was entitled to this money under the
Federal Priority Statute, 31 U. S.C. 191.

The district court, while failing to invoke a trust on the whole amount
of the excessive profits diverted before excessive profits had been deter-
mined, held that the Government was entitled to the proceeds of the tax
refund. The court found that defendant, as a principal of the corporation,

knew of and shared in the removal of the money from the corporate bank



377

account and, as such, was liable to the Government under 31 U. S.C. 192.

In view of the liquidity of defendant's known assets and his demon-
strated predilection to avoid his legal obligations, the ‘Long Arm'' Execu-
tion Statute (28 U. S. C. 2413) was utilized to levy execution on out-of-state
assets before the appeal timne had elapsed and the Connecticut judgment
docketed elsewhere. The execution was successful in sequestering a sub-
stantial amount of liquid assets owned by defendant in New York.

Staff: Enoch E. Ellison and William C. Lengacher (Civil Division)
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CRIMINAL DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General Will Wilson

SUPREME COURT

INTERSTATE GAMBLING

CONDUCTING AN ILLEGAL GAMBLING OPERATION FREQUENTED
BY OUT-OF-STATE BETTORS, EVEN THOUGH INTERSTATE TRAVEL
BY CUSTOMERS WAS REASONABLY FORESEEABLE, DOES NOT CON-
STITUTE VIOLATION OF TRAVEL ACT. 18 U.S,C. 1952

Rewis et al. v. United States (Sup. Ct., No. 5342, April 5, 1971];
39 LW 4363; D.J. 36-64-160, 64-17M-39)

Petitioners conducted a lottery operation in Florida, near the
Georgia border. They were convicted along with two Georgia residents
who placed bets at petitioners' establishment of violating 18 U. S. C.
1952, the Travel Act, which prohibits interstate travel with the intent
to "promote, manage, establish, carry on or facilitate'' certain illegal
activity. The district court instructed the jury that if the Georgia
bettors traveled to Florida for the purpose of gambling, they violated
the Act, and that a defendant could be found guilty under the aiding and
abetting statute, 18 U.S.C. 2, without proof that he had personally per-
formed every act constituting the charged offense. The Fifth Circuit
Court of Appeals reversed the conviction of the Georgia bettors, holding
that § 1952 did not make it a Federal crime merely to cross a state
line to place a bet, but upheld petitioners' convictions on the grounds
that operators of gambling establishments are responsible for the
interstate travel of their customers. 418 F. 2d 1218 (5th Cir., 1969).
The United States did not seek review of the reversal of the conviction
of:the Georgia residents.

The Court ruled that neither the ""ordinary meaning' of the statutory
language nor the legislative history of § 1952 supports the broad inter-
pretation that conducting a gambling operation frequented by out-of-state
bettors, by itself, violated the Travel Act. It also held that, if the
ambit of §1952 had been more ambiguous, it should have been resolved
in favor of lenity, Bell v. United States, 349 U.S. 81, &3 (1955).

The United States offered two alternative constructions of the
Travel Act:

(1) that the Act is violated whenever the operator of an
illegal establishment can reasonably foresee interstate
patronage, or
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(2) that active encouragement of interstate patronage of
an illegal establishment violates the Act.

The Court rejected the '"reasonable foreseeability of interstate
patronage'' interpretation for the reasons that - (a) it was almost as
expansive as the above-rejected interpretation that conducting a gambling
operation frequented by interstate bettors, by itself, violated the Travel
Act; and (b) there was little, if any, evidence of Congressional intent
that foreseeability should govern criminal liability under § 1952.

In dicta, the Court noted that the second alternative interpretation
- that active encouragement of interstate patronage violates the Act -
might be acceptable in situations ''in which the conduct encouraging inter-
state patronage so closely approximates the conduct of a principal in a
criminal agency relationship that the Travel Act is violated''. The
Court cited the application of § 1952 to criminal agency situations in
United States v. Chambers, 382 F. 2d 910, 913-914 (6th Cir. 1967);
United States v. Barrow, 363 F. 2d 62, 64-65 (3d Cir. 1966), cert.
denied, 385 U.S. 1001 (1967); and United States v. Zizzo, 338 F. 2d 577,
580 (7th Cir. 1964), cert. denied, 381 U.S. 915 (1965).

The Court did not rule upon this theory and rejected it as grounds
to uphold the convictions because it was not the interpretation of § 1952
under which petitioners had been convicted.

418 F. 2d 1218 REVERSED.

Staff- Solicitor General Erwin N. Griswold; Assistant
Attorney General Will Wilson; Beatrice Rosenberg,
Sidney M. Glazer, and Michael G. Kelly (Criminal
Division)

COURT OF APPEALS

WHITE SLAVE TRAFFIC ACT

OUTBOUND TRIP ACQUITTAL NO BAR TO HOMEWARD JOURNEY
CONVICTION BASED ON PURPOSE OF TRIP; 21 MONTH DELAY IN
COMMENCING PROSECUTION NOT UNREASONABLE.

United States v. Ross Kotakes (C. A. 7, No. 18489, March 11, 1971;
D.J. 31-26-73)
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Count I of a two -part indictment charged defendant with transport- ‘
ing a woman in interstate commerce from Gary, Indiana, to Louisville,
Kentucky, in January 1968, for the purpose of prostitution, debauchery,
and other immoral purposes, and Count II charged him with transport-
ing the same woman back from Louisville to Gary a few days later for
the same unlawful purposes, in violation of the Mann Act, 18 U.S.C.

2421. Following a jury trial in district court, defendant was found guilty on
Count II but not guilty on Count I. The issue in the Court of Appeals

was whether the jury verdict of not guilty under Count I of the indictment,
as a matter of law, precluded a guilty verdict under Count II, The Court
of Appeals affirmed the decision of the district court, holding that the
evidence was sufficient to sustain the conviction under Count II of the in-
dictment and that such conviction was valid as a matter of law. The
Court noted that there was considerable evidence to show that the trip

to Louisville was not an innocent vacation and that the victim's return

to Gary and subsequent acts of prostitution were under the compulsion

of the defendant. The Court distinguished on the facts the cases of
Mortensen v. United States, 322 U.S. 369 (1944), and United States v.
Ross, 257 F. 2d 292 (C.A. 2, 1958), where the trips were made for the
innocent purposes of recreation and vacation.

Although the offense was committed in January 1968, the indictment .
was not filed until October 1969, some 21 months later. The Court also
held that since the defendant had not shown that this delay by the Govern-
ment in filing the indictment after the alleged violation was unnecessary
or had prejudiced his case, the trial court had not erred in denying de-
fendant's motion to dismiss on the grounds of unreasonable delay.

Staff: United States Attorney William C, Lee and
Assistant United States Attorney John R. Wilks
(N. D. Ind.)
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LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General Shiro Kashiwa

COURTS OF APPEALS

CONDEMNATION

DENIAL OF COMPENSATION FOR REMAINING TERM OF UNECO-
NOMIC SAND AND GRAVEL LEASE; FIXTURES; BUILDINGS; STOCKPILES
OF PROCESSED INVENTORY.

United States v. 1,132.50 Acres, Upper Allegheny Sand & Gravel Co.,

Inc. (C.A. 2, No. 35516; Apr. 14, 1971; D. J. 33-33-881-12)

This was a condemnation action for the taking of a flowage easement
over a portion of the Allegheny Reservation of the Seneca Nation of Indians
which destroyed the sand and gravel operation being conducted on 80 acres
of land leased by Upper Allegheny. The Court of Appeals affirmed the
district court's award of $12, 060.

The Court upheld a finding of no value for the five-year remainder of
the lease. It concluded that the $250, 000 investment needed to make the
plant competitive was prohibitive and that no buyer would purchase the
leasehold interest.

The district court's appraisal of the fair market value of two old
buildings on the property was found consistent with the evidence. The trial
court's reliance on salvage value as realized on a piecemeal sale of the
plant and equipment was not error where that method was most reflective
of actual market value. Finally, the Court held that standing stockpiles
of sand and gravel were personalty for which neither the value nor removal
costs could be awarded.

Staff: Dennis M. O'Connell {Land and Natural Resources Division)

CONTRACTS

U.S. NOT BOUND BY F.A. A, TRAFFIC PREDICTIONS IN CONTRACT
WITH AIRPORT CONCESSIONAIRE.

United States v. Idlewild Pharmacy (C. A. 4, No. 14393; Apr. 8, 1971;
D.J. 90-1-1-2145)

The United States sued a drug store concessionaire at Dulles Airport

for back rent. The concessionaire defended on the ground that passenger
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traffic had fallen far short of the F.A.A.'s predictions. The district court
ruled (308 F.Supp. 19) that traffic levels were a risk the parties took and
that, in any event, the concessionaire had stayed on long after he knew the
facts and was in no position to complain. The Court of Appeals affirmed
on the district court opinion.

Staff: Carl Strass (LLand and Natural Resources Division)

DISTRICT COURTS

ENVIRONMENT

SUFFICIENCY OF CRIMINAL INFORMATION; CONSTITUTIONALITY
OF REFUSE ACT AND FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT.

United States v. U.S, Steel Corp. (N.D. Ind., Crim. No. 70 H Cr. 12;
November 10, 1970; D.J. 62-26-10)

A motion, based on numerous grounds, to dismiss a criminal informa-
tion alleging a violation of Section 13 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899,
33 U.S.C. 407, commonly known as the Refuse Act, was denied in this case.
The court, in a well-reasoned opinion, ruled: (1) the information was not
defective because it failed to allege (a) that defendant acted "wilfully and
knowingly' or (b) that defendant's discharges of refuse obstructed navigation
or (c) that such discharges violated water quality standards or (d) that the
refuse discharged was other than that flowing from streets and sewers and
passing therefrom in a liquid state or (e) that defendant did not have a
permit to discharge from the Corps of Engineers or (f) that the prosecution
was undertaken at the request of the Secretary of the Army or other
appropriate official; (2) the Act is not unconstitutionally vague because it
employs the term ''refuse'; (3) the Act did not deprive defendant of
riparian rights without just compensation; and (4) the Refuse Act and the
Federal Water Pollution Control Act, 33 U.S.C. 1151-1176, taken together,
do not form an unconstitutional scheme of regulation.

Staff: United States Attorney William C. Lee and
Assistant United States Attorney John F. Flynn (N.D. Ind.)

INDIANS

INDIAN BILL OF RIGHTS; LACK OF JURISDICTION OF FEDERAL
CT. OVER INTERNAL TRIBAL DISPUTE.

Lefthand v. Crow Tribal Council, et al. (D. Mont., No. 927;
March 29, 1971; D.J, 90-2-4-189)
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This action was brought by the Secretary of the Crow Tribal Council
against the Council, the Executive Committe of the Council, and the Secre-
tary of the Interior to enjoin the implementation of all resolutions enacted
at the January meetings of the Council and the Committee. He alleged that
irregularities surrounding the meetings made all business transacted
illegal, and that he would be denied rights guaranteed him by 25 U.S. C. 1302
(8), commonly known as the Indian Bill of Rights, if the resolutions were
effected.

In granting defendant's motions to dismiss, the court was unable to
find that plaintiff's individual rights had been infringed, and declared that
Federal jurisdiction does not extend to intratribal disputes such as the one
at issue. The court recognized that the irregularities alleged may have
been in violation of the tribal constitution and laws, but went on to find that
the Indian Bill of Rights did not create Federal jurisdiction over internal
tribal disputes such as methods of conducting tribal business, citing Pirnow
v. Shoshone Tribal Council, 314 F. Supp. 1157 (D. Wyo. 1970).

The court continued that any wrongs which might have occurred have
operated equally to all tribal members, and that plaintiff did not allege that
he has suffered arbitrary and intentional discrimination. Further, the
court dismissed plaintiff's contentions that his property would be taken
without due process of law by noting that tribal property belongs to the Tribe
and not to individual tribal members and that plaintiff has no vested interest
in any property which could be the subject of tribal action. After concluding
that it had no jurisdiction over the subject matter, the court then found that .
the complaint failed to state a claim for which relief could be granted.

Staff: Assistant United States Attorney Keith L.. Burrowes (D. Mont.)
and Dennis J. Whittlesey (Land and Natural Resources
Division)

AZNVIRONMENT; HIGHWAYS

NEPA; SUBSTANTIAL COMPLIANCE; FEDERAL INTERSTATE
HIGHWAY PROGRAM,; PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION.

George and Mary Daly, et al. v. John A. Volpe, et al. (W.D. Wash.,
No. 9490; Apr. 9, 1971; D.J. 90-1-4-283)

This case involves a portion of I-90 as it bypasses the Town of North
Bend, Washington. Plaintiffs, residents of North Bend, contended that the
bypass would impair the value of their property and the wildlife facilities,
and sought a preliminary injunction, alleging failure to comply with NEPA

and the regulations of the Department of Transportation and the Federal
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Highway Administration regarding compliance with NEPA,

The court found that the location of this segment of the highway had
been a matter of public controversy since 1957 and that numerous public
hearings were held in 1969 and 1970 after giving notice to many local inter-
ests. The State Highway officials prepared environmental reports which
were considered by the Federal Highway officials but not submitted to local
citizen groups or other interested agencies. The court found that, even
though there was not strict compliance with NEPA, there was substantial
compliance and the failure to follow the rules exactly was nonprejudicial.
The court further found that the injury to the community which would be
caused by further delay in the construction of the highway outweighed the
claimed injury to plaintiffs in requiring strict compliance with NEPA and
therefore denied the preliminary injunction.

Staff: Assistant United States Attorney Albert E. Stephan (W. D.
Wash. )
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TAX DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General Johnnie M. Walters

COURT OF APPEALS

THEORIES OF PROOF

IN TAX EVASION CASE INVOLVING SPECIFIC ITEMS AND NET
WORTH PROOF, CONVICTION REVERSED BECAUSE OF INADEQUATE
NET WORTH PROOF AND NET WORTH INSTRUCTIONS,

United States v. Meriwether (C.A. 5, No. 28445; March 26, 1971;
D.J. 5-1-1072)

The defendant was convicted for attempting to evade joint income taxes
for the years 1962, 1963 and 1964, in violation of 26 U.S.C, 7201. The de-
fendant insisted on waiving counsel and defending himself. At the trial, the
Government used both the specific items and net worth methods of proof.
The Court of Appeals reversed and remanded the case holding that, although
the specific items proof and instructions were adequate, the net worth proof
and instructions were not, and there was no way to determine whether the
jury based its verdict on the adequate line of proof.

The opinion is confusing with respect to the necessity for corrobora-
tion of the defendant's cash on hand admission. Government prosecutors
should insist that the necessity for corroboration stems from the rule that
a defendant may not be convicted solely on his admissions or confessions.
Here there does not seem to have been any chance that that could have been

a danger.

The opinion further illustrates that the Court should appoint counsel
if the defendant does not have counsel. If the defendant refuses, the United
States Attorney should urge that the Court should appoint counsel to be
available for consultation during the trial.

Staff: Former Assistant United States Attorney R. Macey Taylor
(N, D. Ala.)



